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A Walk Through
the

West Side
Historic District

Historic Tour Guide No.1

1908 Banneker School graduating classwith
Elder Watson Diggs, Principal and founder of
the KappaAlpha Psi fraternity

Workersat P.B. Martin Creamery about 1910

Front Photo: Man standing on the Center of
Population Stone placed in front of the Showers
Brothers Furniture Factory Plant #1in 1910

This brochure has been funded in part by a U.S. Department
of the Interior, National Park Service Historic Preservation
Fund grant and administered by the Indiana Department
of Natural Resources, Division of Historic Preservation
and Archaeology. This program has received federal
assistance for the identification, protection, and/or
rehabilitation of historic properties and cultural resources
in the State of Indiana. Under Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of

InAppreciation:

Research for this project was originally funded in
part by a Department of the Interior grant
administered by the Division of Historic Preservation

1973, the U.S. Department of the Interior prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin,
or disability in its federally assisted programs.

If you believe that you have been discriminated against in
any program, activity, or facility as described above, or if
you desire further information, please write to: Office of
Equal Opportunity, U.S. Department of the Interior,

of the Department of the Interior, nor does the mention

and Archaeology, Indiana Department of Natural
Resources.

Financial support for this publication was provided
by the Department of Housing and Neighborhood
Development, City of Bloomington.

resources in the district.

Washington, D.C. 20240. Assistance was provided by Danielle Bachant-Bell i
The activity that is the subject of the brochure has been and Nancy Hiestand.

financed in part with federal funds from the U.S. . . .

Department of the Interior, National Parks Service. Many thanksfor the historic photographs of Elizabeth
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1. ShowersBrothersCo.
FurnitureShowroom
531 NorthMorton
c. 1920

One of four remaining buildings
from the Showers Brothers
Company complex, the L-
shaped former showroom and research |aboratory is constructed
of variegated red brick. It displays a pilastered facade with
simple limestone detailing, araised rusticated basement, and a
stepped parapet roof typical of commercial buildings of the
period. The building immediately to the north (601 N. Morton,
¢. 1915) housed the company’s administrative offices. Although
similar in appearance, it displays more ornate and classical
limestone pilasters and parapet details.

2. ShowersBrothersCo.
FurnitureFactory
401 NorthMorton
1910/1923

With nearly 200,000 squarefest,
this is the largest remaining e
historicindustrial buildinginthe “&=

city. At the height of the company’s operation the complex
consisted of two largefactory buildingswith over adozen smaller
supporting structures. Known as Plant No. 1, the factory was
constructed in apolygonal plan to conformto therailroad tracks
running on both its east and west sides. The red brick building
displaysadistinctive sawtooth roof with north-facing skylights
and repetitive bays. A major rehabilitation project in 1994-
1996 allowed its adaptive re-use as City Hall. Across the street
at 416-420 N. Morton (c. 1927), isthe Smallwood-Pike building.
It housed the Smallwood Restaurant (1927-28), Record
Hatchery (1929-35), and Charles Pike Lumber Company (1930-
56).

3. llincisCentral Railroad
Freight Depot
301 NorthMorton
1906; NR & LD

To spur development in the
area, local government provided
an $85,000 subsidy for rail line
construction along what is now Morton Street. The depot was
built in the most architecturally functional way to serve the
burgeoning limestone, furniture and lumber companies nearby.
A second floor on the south side was added in 1922, but in
1959, fifty-four feet of freight space was demolished from the
north side. In 1963 the building was removed from rail service.
At 214 W. 7" isthe 1922 Curry Buick Building, used asaBuick
dealership until 1971. Thebuilding at 300 W. 7" (1915) originally
housed Bloomington Wholesal e Foods.

4. Johnson’sCreamery
400 West 7th
c. 1913/1925; NR

Ward and Ellis Johnson bought
out the Bloomington Creamery
in 1913. Shortly thereafter the
oldest part of this brick factory
buildingwashbuilt at the east end. By 1925 the space had quadrupled
Thethree-story, windowless, cork-lined icehouse was built during
the rapid expansion of the 1920s. The newest part of the building
dates from the 1950's. Its adaptive re-use retained the 120 foot
smokestack and two large compressors.

5. Bethd AM.E.Church
302 North Rogers
1921

Bloomington's first architect,
John Nichols, designed thisArts
and Crafts style limestone
building for the second location
of Bethel African Methodist Episcopal congregation, founded
in 1870. Member Mattie Jacobs Fuller raised over $13,000
dollarstoward the building fund by playing gospelshymnsand
spirituals on her portable organ every Saturday afternoon on
the square. Pointed arch window openings, stained glass and
multi-paned windows, and an ashlar limestone and pilastered
facade distinguish this unique religious structure.

6. 221 North Rogers
c. 1860

Thisisoneof the few mid-19"-
century frame housesremaining
in Bloomington. It has served
asaCivil War hospital, anursing
home, boarding house and -
possibly a roadhouse. An unusually long I-house W|th rear
wing, gable-end chimney and stone foundation, it retains much
of its original appearance despite the addition of aluminum
siding.

7. JohnEast House
417 West 6th
1863

Also known as Brakefield, this
house was built as a parsonage
for First Methodist Church. It :

was later owned by John R. East, lawyer, Civil War veteran and
author of Captain Wallop and The Great Monon Express Robbery.
This brick two-thirds I-house shows the beginning of the
transitional building period on thewest side. It features elaborate
bracketing on the front porch and handsome glass-work around
the front door.

8. Bloomington Garage
316 West 6
. 1925

Thisbuilding was first used for
car repair and service and later
as a Chrysler Plymouth
dealership. Its brick masonry,
stepped parapet and open bowstring truss are typical period
elements of auto-related architecture. To the east, at 300 W. 6™,
was the site of Hays Market, alocal grocery serving the west
side from the 1940s until the late 1990s

9. BatmanHouse

403West Kirkwood

1895
Designed by Bloomingtonarchitect
John Nichols, thismansion was
built by John Waldron for his
daughter at the corner of his
tannery site. She married Judge Ira Batman, a prominent
attorney, judge and First National Bank official. The house is
the soleresidential example of grand proportion use of limestone
in the district. Its rich variety of textures and forms display
elements of the Second Empire, Queen Anne and Romanesgue
Revival styles.

10. Frosted Food Building

213 South Rogers

c. 1927
Originally built to house asheet
metal and auto repair shop, the
building ischaracteristic of early
twentieth century industrial =
construction. The steel sash ventilator windows and metal
bowstring trussroof provideinteresting spacefor adaptivereuse
asaretail center. The similar brick building to the north, the Fell
Building (c. 1930), was also built for the auto industry and
displayssimilar architectural features. The brick building across
Rogers Street was the location of Roy Burns Market (1934),
one of several small grocery storesthat once dotted the district.
To the northwest, at 505-511 W. 4", is the 1934 City Garage.

11. Graves-Morrison House
608 West Kirkwood
c. 1885

Built for the Graves Family, this
two-story gabled-ell has arich
variety of Queen Annedetailing.
The two-story projecting bay
has its own bracketed gable. Decorative scrollwork adorns the
wrap-around porch and a small second story porch hasits own
gable. The Morrison family, only the second owners of the
house, restored it in 1990. The building to the east, at 514 W.
Kirkwood, was originally an unadorned I-house. It was
transformed ¢.1895 into the Queen Anne style with a round
corner tower, two-story veranda with delicate paired columns
and spindle work, and decorative shingling in the gables.

P

12. Hendrix House
726 West 6
c. 1875

Built for Hannah Hendrix before
the surrounding area was
platted, this farmhouse is an
example of an I-housewith rear
additions. Notice the two-story front porch, the flush chimneys
and the cornice entablature. Originally asingle-family dwelling,
it has been an apartment house since the early 1900's.

13. Fairview Methodist
Church
606 West 6th
c. 1922

Foundedin 1895, thecongregation ]|||
relocated to this site when fire
destroyed its 1914 building. E
Builtinthe Gothic Revival style, thisbrick building isenhanced
with l[imestone trim and opal escent glass windows. To the west
at 615 W. 6", the Queen Anne-styling of this late 19" century
brick houseisindicated by thedecorative shingling inthemultiple
gablesand theirregular floor plan. Note the etched glasswindow
and the round-arched brick lintels. Next door at 621 W. 6", this
¢. 1890 brick Queen Anne cottage features a hipped roof with
gables, tall chimneys, arched brick lintels, and plain returns.
North of the church on the corner of Jackson and 7th (523W. 7%),
isac. 1880 centra passage home with a cross gabled porch,
decorative shingle work, and bay windows.

14. Griffin House =
621 West 7t
c. 1898

Built by Lafayette Mayfield, the
Griffin family occupied it for 44
years. Thefamily owned Quality
Hardware Storeand Mrs. Griffin
was afounding member of the Fairview PTA. Itstypical Queen
Anne detailing features multiple gables, turned porch posts and
adecorative spindle frieze. Immediately to the west, at 625 W.
7" isac. 1925 side gable bungalow with arock-faced limestone
porch. Thishousetypeisrepresentative of thelater construction
eraof the neighborhood.

Please respect the privacy of the owners by
viewing all private buildings from the street.

15. Flanigan House
714 West 7
c. 1895

One of this home’s earliest
occupantswas JW. Fariswhose
family still maintainsagrocery
gore near the courthouse square.
It was|ater owned by the Rev. Adamson, minister of the Church
of Christ, and in the 1930s was occupied by the Ringlette Shop,
one of the many beauty parlorsin the neighborhood. This two-
story gabled-ell has decorative gable shingles, corner brackets
and turned porch posts with a decorative spindle frieze. The
Sweeney House (1932) passed at 702 W. 7™ is one of the few
American Foursquare homesin the neighborhood, another type
representative of the later era. Relatively affordable and often
built asakit home, it doubled the square footage of the bungal ow.

16. 904 West 7t
c. 1900

Thissingle story, frame shotgun
is one room wide with a gabled
wing. Its history reportedly
includes use as a neighborhood
restaurant. Additional examples
of the shotgun house can be viewed along N. Adams Street. The
gabled-€ell cottage at 902 W. 7" features a hipped roof and
multiple gables of the Queen Anne period.

17. TheBanneker School
930 West 7t
1915

Surrounded by a Works
Progress  Administration
(WPA) limestone wall, the
Banneker was substantially
built of dressed limestone that modestly recalls the Beaux Arts
style. From 1915 until 1954, the Banneker served as a segregated
grade school. The City of Bloomington now uses it as a
community center. Further west on 7" Street, visted either on
foot or by vehicle, isthe White Oak Cemetery. Originally named
United Presbyterian Cemetery for the church once located on
thesite, burials date prior to 1876 and includelocally prominent
names such as Fee, Wylie, Bryan, Gourley, Woodburn and
Henderson.

18. 722 West 8"
c. 1930

The WPA constructed several
limestone retaining walls in the
neighborhood. Thisexampleisthe
rockfaced block while others |
display “found” sabs and rubble M=
face block. Hexagond tile walks in the neighborhood are dso WPA
projects. Thehomesto thewest areadditiona examplesof typicd late-
19" century housetypes, the gabled-ell (acrossthe street at 715 W. 81)
and the pyramidal roof cottage (to the west at 802 W. 8").

m. |
|l

19. EliasAbd House
317 North Fairview
c.1850; NR& LD

EliasAbel, county treasurer and
state legislator, bought the lot
in 1845 and built this house
sometime before selling the
property in 1856. Built in the Greek Revival style, originally
with a“fair view of the courthouse”, it may well be the finest
frame example of the central hall I-housein Bloomington. The
low-pitched roof is supported by adecorative frieze with boxed
returns on the gable ends; Doric pilasters are on both front
corners and the open porch (a restoration) echoes the Greek
columns and decorated frieze found on the eaves and gables.
Further east at 627 W. 8" isFairview Public School. The present
main building (1953) replaced the original 1892 Romanesque
Revival structure. The WPA brick annex was built in 1928.

20. Cochran-Hedton-Lindley
House
504 North Rogers
1850; NR& LD

Built in 1850 by James Cochran, a
progperous miller, liquor merchant,
cabinetmaker and landowner, this
imposing brick 1-house was restored in the 1970's. During the 19"
century the house was owned by prominent Bloomington citizens
including Andrew Helton, Samuel Buskirk and Hiram Lindley.
Architectura features include Itaianate paired eave brackets, a front
portico with paired limestone columns and a paneled front door with
transom and Sddlights.

21. Second Baptist Church
321 North Rogers
1913;NR& LD

The Second Baptist congregation
was established in Bloomington
in 1872. Samuel Plato, a black
architect from Louisville,
designed this church according to the Akron plan: a square
sanctuary with semi-circular seating. Plato was later employed
by the federal government and designed many post offices and
federal buildings. Here the limestone veneer fagade has large
gables, a sguare bell tower and stained glass windows. The
cornerstone inscription reads. “Second Baptist Church/ 1913/
Rev. M.M. Porter, Pastor.”




